Indian Hills General Improvement District
Board of Trustees

Chairman Vice Chairman Secretary/Treasurer Trustee Trustee
Dale Dunham Robert Stulac Vicky Lufrano Russ Siegman Robert Garcia
October 18, 2023

Regular Board Meeting 6:00 P.M.
District Board Room
3394 James Lee Park Road
Carson City, NV
89705
(775) 267-2805

MISSIONSTATEMENT
The Mission of the District is to provide, within its Charter, those public facilities and services which
maintain and improve the quality of life of its resident families and to maintain and operate those
facilities and services at the highest quality and in the most cost-effective manner possible, with the
intent to continue to do so for a growing population of residents.

It is the intent of the Board of Truslees to protect the dignity of citizens who wish to comment before the Board. It
is also the Board of Trustees” wish to provide the citizens of the district with an environment that upholds the
highest professional standards.

In order 1o ensure that every citizen desiring to speak before the Board has the opportunity to express his/her
opinion, it is requested that the audience refrain from making comments, hand clapping or making any remarks or
gestures that may interrupt, interfere, or prevent the speaker from commenting on any present or future project.

In accordance with Federal law and U.S. Department of Agriculture policy, IHGID is prohibited from discriminating on
the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, religion, age, disability (Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) To
file a complaint of discrimination, write to USDA, Director, Office of Civil Rights, 1400 Independence Avenue, S.W.,
Washington, D.C. 20250-9410, or call (800) 795-3272 (voice) or (202) 720-6382 (TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity
provider, employer, and lender.

Communication for Hearing Impaired: Nevada Relay Service is available by calling 711. The TTY or HCO
(hearing carry over) number is 800-326-6868, Voice only is 800-326-6888, VCO (voice carry over) is
800-326-4013.

Notice to Persons with Disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special assistance or
accommodations at the meeting are requested Lo notify the District Office in writing at 3394 James Lee Park Road,
Carson City, NV 89705, or by calling 267-2805 at least 24 hours in advance,

Following is the Agenda, which is also posted on IHGID’s website at; www.indianhillsnevada.com




AGENDA

6:00 P.M. — Regular Meeting

1. Call to Order - Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees
2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Public Interest Comment (No Action)

The public may comment on any subject that is pertinent to IHGID. The public may comment on any item that is on
this agenda at the time it is discussed. Therefore, the public is encouraged and permitted to make comments on any
non-agenda items during the public interest comment period. Comments may be limited by the discretion of the
Chair and may not exceed three (3) minutes. Please note that the Board is prohibited by law from deliberating or
taking action on issues raised by the public that are not listed on this agenda.

4, Approval of Agenda-Chairman
Items on this agenda may be taken out of order. Two or more agenda items may be combined

for consideration. Any item appearing on this agenda may be removed, or its discussion
delayed at any time.

* Motion
¢ Vote
5. Reports to the Board:
a. General Manager Report
1. Administrative
2. Water
3. Wastewater
b. District Accountant Report
c. Engineer Report

d. Attorney Report

o Board of Trustees Discussion
e Open Public
¢ Close Public Comment

6. Discussion and possible action to award a bid to Spanish Springs Construction in the amount
of $1,848,905.00 with an additional $50,000.00 force account for the Indian Drive
Reconstruction & Utility Replacement Project.

(District Engineer, Collin/ District General Manager, Chris Johnson)

¢ Board of Trustees Discussion
e Open Public Comment
¢ (Close Public Comment

7. Discussion and possible action to adopt a new park use fee schedule. (Trustee, Garcia)
¢ Board of Trustees Discussion

¢ Open Public Comment
¢ Close Public Comment



10.

11.

12.

13.

Discussion and possible action to adopt a structured form for General Manager mid-year and
annual evaluation which may include goals and objectives for the next review cycle.
(Trustee, Garcia)

o Board of Trustees Discussion
¢ Open Public Comment
® Close Public Comment

Discussion only on sharing excess speed data with the appropriate authorities.
(Trustee, Garcia)

® Board of Trustees Discussion
¢ Open Public Comment
® Close Public Comment

Discussion only and update on James Lee Dog Park improvements.
(General Manager, Chris Johnson)

e Board of Trustees Discussion
Open Public Comment
e Close Public Comment

Discussion and possible action to approve Draft Minutes from the September 20, 2023,
Board Meeting.

e Board of Trustees Discussion
¢ Open Public Comment
e (lose Public Comment

Chairman and Trustees Reports, Correspondence

Under this item the Board Members will briefly identify relevant communications received
by them before the meeting, or meetings attended, or potential business of the district. No
action will be taken on any of these items, but a member may request such an item or topic
be placed on a future agenda.

Adjournment

This agenda is posted at wwiw.indianhillsnevada.com, https://notice.nv.gov and at the following locations:

District Main Office, 3394 James Lee Park Road

As of 8:30 A.M., October 13, 2023, by (04



AGENDA ITEM 5a.

Reports to the Board:
a. General Manager Report
1. Administrative

2. Water
3. Wastewater



General Manager Report October 18, 2023

The crosswalk flasher for South Sunridge arrived and the crew installed it the next day. We
tested it out for a few hours to ensure that the timing provided enough time for our elder
residents to cross, without being excessively long. We had to trim back a few branches from the
neighboring trees, but the signs are in place and bright. We’ve already had compliments on the
crosswalk signs.

| worked with our District Mechanic to plan a location for the other flashing speed sign. It will
be going onto the 25-mph sign at the curve of South Sunridge northbound. That will flash to let
drivers know that they are leaving the 35-mph zone and indicate that the speed is 25 mph.




I got a quote from a company for a security camera in the dog park. That quote came in very high
{$12,000) so | set up a time and met with our Tech Services contractor. He provided me with a quote for
a single camera that will be mounted on a 10’ at the edge of the dog park. We will install a second
camera on the building to watch across the street. These cameras will record continuously and
overwrite when the server gets full. The server is capable of about 30 days of recording. If there is an
incident, we will be able to review the footage and save it. That camera system is going to cost us
approximately $4,000 - $5,000. We will repurpose a pole and mount it next to the skate park. We will
have to run power to the pole for the camera.

I have had several meetings with a company that is building our webpage. They will ensure that we are
in compliance with federal, state, and ADA regulations. The page will provide a calendar where we can
post our events, be easy to update, and will enable me to digitize a great deal of our in-house
paperwork. For example, leave requests and timesheets will not be able to be completed by staff on
their company cell phones or computers, and will not need to be printed. My meetings with the
company have been the initial cost discussion and viewing what the webpage will include. The second
meeting was to plan the timeline for the new webpage and set goals for different key points. The third
meeting was to get together information and ensure that they know what will need to be done for the
webpage. The next meeting will be for a review of the design, and for them to start the migration. | have
spent about six hours with the company planning the new webpage, and numerous hours gathering
data and necessary information for the new page.

The tennis courts took a little longer to finish than originally planned, but they are complete. We've
already had a few tennis players expressing how happy they are with the courts.




We moved the speed sign to Vista Grande, and will be moving it again after it has been there for two
weeks. | have spent numerous hours trying to compile the data into a format that was requested. This
has proven to be challenging and extremely time consuming. | am trying to get it into a format that the
board can use without having to go through thousands of lines of data. | am collecting the data in PDF
format (as you've seen in the previous items), but that does not give a breakdown by time or day. This is
a very time consuming project.

I've participated in a couple of Douglas County Strategic Plan meetings to discuss our part in the
County’s Strategic Plan and to represent our district in future needs. | also met with the Interagency
Water Agreement managers about upcoming changes to rates. | will bring this back as an agenda item
next month.

We hired a new Field Operations 2. Steve has taken charge of the parks and streets department and is
already demonstrating his experience and expertise in parks and streets maintenance.

| have started to design a “maintenance schedule” to provide information to residents on when certain
maintenance items will be accomplished. | am putting my project notes and calendar appointments into
a format that is presentable to the board.

| spent a large amount of time researching the dog park equipment. As we are using funding from a
grant, | need to do my due diligence in researching that we get the best value for our money. | feel that |
have accomplished that in finding the options that | have found. This has been a time consuming
project. Once | order in the equipment, it will be two to three months before the equipment is
delivered. That should put the equipment here in a time when dog park use is minimal, and allow us to
work on the project and get the new equipment installed in the early spring.

I met and spent multiple hours with the engineers to include the pre-bid meeting and bid openings for
the Indian Drive Project to include the Drainage and Yard Improvements. We rolled the Drainage and
Yard Improvements project into the Indian Drive project to reduce the cost of the project. By rolling



them together, a company that is already mobilized for the road repairs can do the yard project with
less expense than doing the yard project by itself. | am anxious to finally start work on Indian Drive.

I met with NDF regarding our Firewise Community Grant. We are doing voluntary Defensible Space
Inspections on the 18", in time to give those residents an opportunity to clear any potential issues and
get them to the Community Cleanup Day.

Community Cleanup Day is the 21* of October. It will be our final cleanup day for the year. | will be here
with our parks staff.

Our Trunk or Treat event is scheduled for the 28" of October. As of now, we only have 4 vehicles signed
up {including myself). | hope that we can get some more volunteers for this event as it generally has a
high attendance.

| met with a fence contractor that asked for some time to present their fencing options. They are high
security fences that | do not believe we have a need for in the district.

| spent a few hours tracking down the graffiti remover for our skate park. | was finally able to order it
through Western Nevada Supply. It arrived the next week, and our staff immediately got on it. It cleaned
the graffiti out of the skate park.

| did three complete drives through the district, on every street to evaluate sidewalk obstructions and
maintenance needs. This is my normal routine. | typically drive every street in the district during the
week.

| met with Douglas Disposal and the wastewater staff at the wastewater plant to evaluate the drainage
ponds and the need to clean them out. We're working on a project cost to completely remove the
sludge from the ponds and transport it to Bentley. We are also looking at alternative methods to save
costs.



I met multiple times weekly with the water supervisor, wastewater supervisor, and parks staff to plan
projects and get updates. This has been my normal routine to meet with them regularly to ensure that |
have my finger on the pulse of what's happening in those departments, but also so that they know that
the manager is available to them.

I coordinated with one of our tennis players that uses the courts regularly so that the courts can be
locked with padlocks. The tennis community has a combination lock in other tennis courts that they all
know the combination for, so | am setting our locks to the same combination so that the tennis courts
will stay locked but the tennis community has access to them.

| fielded several calls from community members about observations in the district. For every call | noted
the resident’s concern and addressed the concern. | have also spoken to board members from another
district asking for advice on some maintenance issues.

We have a handful of sidewalk panels that the staff will be replacing scon. Concrete is difficult to
schedule right now, so they’re just waiting on the concrete truck availability to replace those sidewalk
panels. | have received a couple of calls about the sidewalk panels, and we are noting them to replace
them when the concrete is available.

I met with Brooke, and we are reevaluating our telecommunications. Our existing telecommunications
plan is very costly, so Brooke has reached out to another vendor for us to see if we can change. We are
also looking to eliminate lines that are no longer necessary.

With the approval of the Park Fee Schedule, | will have a locksmith re-key the park restroom nearest the
tennis courts so that we can provide groups with off-hours restroom access.

I am currently planning some other community events for the district. | am working with special groups
to provide these community events. More to follow.

Administrative Report October 2023

The ACH program continues to be well received. Residents are thankful the district has
implemented this option for payments. We currently have 548, 27.128% of residents taking
advantage of automatic withdrawal. We continue to receive requests and new authorization
forms daily.

In September we sent out forty-one past-due bills resulting in one disconnection, that account
paid in full, and service has been restored.

The district’s Gazebo reservations are still in full swing for the summer months with four
reservations for James Lee Park Gazebo in September. One Gazebo reservation North Sunridge
Park and one for South Sunridge Park.

We had eight new account sign ups in September. These are homes that have changed
ownership.



On October 2, 2023, BJ, the Field Operations Utility i moved to the Water Department as an
Operator in Training.

We have hired a new Field Operations Utility Il employee who brings with him 15 years of
experience working in Parks, Streets and Water in the public sector. He started on Monday,
October 9, 2023, and is a great addition with a wealth of knowledge.

On Thursday, October 12, 2023, all staff attended a three-hour Managing Conflict training
hosted by Pool Pact. This was a great interactive training that everyone enjoyed.

Our Annual Trunk or Treat is on Saturday, October 28, 2023, from 3:00-5:00PM. We are slowly
getting participants to decorate their vehicles and hand out candy. Please let me know if you
would like to join in the fun.

Water Department Report October 2023

Water Quality:
- The Bac-T sample results for September 2023 came back good.
- The Hobo water plant received 22.5 MG of (Minden) water for the month of September.

- North Well pumped 2.2 MG and South Well pumped 2.6 MG of water for the month of
September.

- Ridgeview Well pumped 2.8 MG of water for September.

- Hobo well sent 0.15 MG of water to the golf course for the month of September.
Water Plant Rounds:

Every morning all operations of the Water plant are checked. Morning rounds consist of,
- The water level and operation of all water storage tanks are checked and recorded.

- The water pressure at the plant and off-site booster stations is checked and recorded.

- All flow and totalizer meters are checked, and the amount of water used is recorded.

- The booster pumps at the plant are checked for proper voltage and current. They are also
checked for excessive temperatures at bearings and checked for any water leaks. All
information is recorded.

- Water samples are taken from the plant, and we check the water for proper chlorine residual
and calibrate the chlorine analyzer as needed. We also check the water for PH, clarity, and
temperature. All information is recorded.



« Trends of the water system are checked through SCADA. Checking these trends for anomalies
in the distribution system can give us an early warning of future problems.

Maintenance:

« The Water department underwent a sanitary survey performed by the Bureau of Safe Drinking
Water. All water sites were inspected and reviewed.

- The school wells have bheen shut down and winterized.

- The Water department excavated a water meter pit at 3359 Vista Grande Blvd. due to a leak in
the meter pit.

Wastewater Department Report October 2023

1: Treatment plant: Rebuilding the in-line grinder has solved a low flow issue with the solid
handling sludge pump house. The Grinder was impeding flow to the dewatering press.

We lowered the culvert by the Filter building almost a foot. This will help drainage on Hobo Hot
Springs Road.

Ryan cleaned out years of settled material from the bottom of the east primary pond. It is ready
to be used again.

We are working with Douglas Disposal (DDI) to haul sludge out of the upper east pond. Ryan
has removed about a third of the sludge with our backhoe. We are waiting for a per load cost to
decide on how to proceed with the project.

| have been mowing all the roads around the plant with the Kubota tractor.
Ryan has set up our new spray rig and is spraying weeds on a regular basis.
Ryan and | have dragged the roads on a regular basis, especially after any rain.

2: Lift Stations: Sierra controls installed vents on the Lift 5 RTU (SCADA) cabinet to prevent
overheating.

All 4 lift stations continue to perform satisfactorily.

3: Sewer Collection: Ryan inspected problem manholes and is editing the list as needed. He is
up to date on manhole flushing.

Continue weekly check of sewer hot spots (manholes that develop above average grease
buildup} and physically pulling sewer lids, checking for flow, debris, root intrusion and
confirming locations in relation to our plot maps. This ongoing maintenance of the sewer



system has been very successful; we have identified potential problems long before they
develop into messy situations.



AGENDA ITEM 5b.

Reports to the Board:

b. District Accountant Report

/O



INDIAN HILLS GID
CASH BALANCES
AS OF 9/30/23

CASH BALANCES

Operating
Reserved from rate increase
Reserved for Parks
Reserved for streets
Reserved Donations
Reserved for water tank
Operating Available

Payroll

Money Market-Nevada State Bnk
Reserve for Infrastructure
Reserve for Connections
Reserve for storm water mgt
Reserve for sewer debt reserves
Reserve for short lived assets

Money Market Available
Money Market-Moreton

Pipeline
Reserve for USDA debt service
Reserve for O&M
Reserve for short lived assets
Reserve for AB198 capital repl
Reserve for construction
Pipeline Available

Total
Investment Pool
IHGID
IHCIP (2m 2007 Bonds)
Drinking Revenue Bond
Total

$ 65,278,648.92
$2,610,426.44
$ 2561987
$ 1,376,314.42
$ 2,691.17
$  30,066.85

9/30/2023

1,641,075.51
646,386.94
598,506.66
43,749.89
57,998.80
47,048.45

A e h e

$ 579,910.33
$ 40,284.00
$ 6794182
$ 334,355.20
$ 120,981.76
$ 16,347.55

$ 1,233,530.17

$ 3,074.92

$ 24738477

$ 3,021,527.77

$ -

$ 4,505,517.63

©,139.02
127,303.77
263,678.29

“|r & A

400,121.08



INDIAN HILLS GID

CASH BALANCES BY FUND

9/30/2023
CASH BALANCES 9/30/2023
WATER SEWER ADMIN
Operating 1,417,276.82 1,974,856.43 1,886,5615.67
Reserved from rate increase 1,310,856.80 1,299,569.64
Reserved for streets 100,000.00 1,276,314.42
Reserved Donations 2,691.17
Reserved for parks 25,619.87
Reserved for water tank 30,066.85
Operating Available -23,646.83 675,286.79 581,890.21
Mongy Market-Nevada State Bank 432,582.58 749 563.27 458 929.66
Reserve for Infrastructure 146,829.88 214,421.97 285,135.09
Reserve for Connections 309,513.33 288,993.33
Reserve for storm water mgt 43,749.89
Reserve far sewer debt service 57,998.80
Reserve for sewer short lived assets 47,048.45
Money Market Availabie -23,760.63 141,100.72 130,044.68
Money Market-Moreton 1,007,175.92 1,007,175.92 1,007,175.93
Pipeline 579,910.33
Reserve for debt service (fully funded) 40,284.00
Reserve for O&M 67,941.82
Reserve for short lived assets 334,355.20
Reserve for AB198 capital replacement 120,981.76
Reserve for construction 16,347.55
0.00
TOTAL AVAILABLE 959,768.46 1,823,563.43 1,719,110.82



INDIAN HILLS GID

ATTORNEY EXPENSES
SEPTEMBER 2023
MONTHLY FEE 3,000.00
EXPENSES 12.00
UNION 4,051.00
TOTAL 7,063.00

13



salleA Junowe JuswAied ,,
{H3IM3S %S9 “HIALYM %SE) «

61°126°20Z'C $

%452 0e0e/LiL AInf pue uer anp 9O'EYEOF G9's06'€LS $ 31V.1S 0102 3INIT3dId

%SeC 1G02/L8 ATHLNOW 00'28€°€ L VATA T 3NIN3did vasn

%G.L¢ ¢soe/ LN ATHINOW 80'¥G.'F 0T 0EP'ELLL H¥3Im3as vasn

%00V 9zoe/LibL AON pue Aejy anp e 00'000'66S $ »  ANOS L002 ¥IMISAILYM

%9t 9c0e/LiL Ainr pue uer enp £L£'0ZZ'65 0L€ee’l8T % aNOS £00Z Y3LVM
3ivd  INJWAVd ININAV JONVIVE 193a

1S343LNI  TVNIL

£2/0¢/6 40 SV
1930 WY3L1 ONO1
ai© STH NVIAGNI



INDIAN HILLS GID
ENGINEERING EXPENSES
SEPTEMBER 2023

INDIAN DRIVE 5,455.00

5,455.00

IS



gevel 0091 000 000 8c Ovt 00'LL 06'¢8C 00's SIVLOL
000 0 000 000 00°0 JINVYHO3IW
000 0 000 000 00°0 JINYHO3IN
000 0 000 000 000 H3dNS YIAMIS
#6101 Z 000 6201 4 000 H34NS WIMIS
Foevi € 000 000 roeprl € HO3L ¥3m3s
000 0 000 000 0070 HO3L Y3am3s
000 0 000 000 000 140ddNS NINGQY
000 0 000 000 140ddNS NINGY
acorlL % 000 000 92 0rl (% H3dNS 431vM
000 0 000 000 000 H3dNS Y31LVM
000 0 000 000 000 S13341S
000 0 000 000 000 S13341S
000 0 000 000 000 SYYvd
82°18¢C 8 000 82'.9¢ 8 000 SYYvd
000 0 000 000 000 HJ331l Y3a1lvm
9l 'Sy l 000 91’6k l 000 HO3L H3alvm
" sBuiuseg SINOH SINOH £202/22/6 SINOH £20Z/9/6 SINOH safoidwg
jelol 210l o1ep Aed aep Aed a)ep Aed
£20Z tequisidag
SHNOH LNOTTVO/ANILEIA0

ousig Juswaacidw| [elsuag) s|iIH UBIpU|



INDIAN HILLS GID

REVENUE AND EXPENSE

NOT INCLUDING DEPRECIATION
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

INCOME
FEES
CONNECTION FEES
CRICKET/VERIZON
GRANT INCOME
INTEREST
MISCELLANEOUS
TOTAL REV

EXPENSES
SALARIES/BENEFITS
OPERATING EXP
DEBT PRINCIPAL
DEBT INTEREST
** CAPITAL OUTLAY

TOTAL EXP

PROAIT

NON-CASH
infrastructure depletion (DEPRECIATION)

** Reserves from rate reserves used to fund SCADA improvements

WATER
(OVER)/ 25.00%
BUDGET ACTUAL UNDER

1,405,000.00 468,474.36  936,525.64 33.34%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
12,441.60 2,073.60 10,368.00 16.67%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
4,000.00 11,739.27 (7,739.27) 293.48%
0.00 250.00 {250.00) 0.00%
1,421,441.60 482,537.23 938,904.37 33.95%
437,246.01 103,684.95 333,561.06 23.71%
452,975.00 127,128.47 325,846.53 28.07%
236,732.60 4,873.46 231,859.14 2.06%
55,038.28 18,345.25 36,693.03 33.33%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
1,181,991.89 254,032.13 927,959.76 21.49%

239,449.71 228,505.10 10,944.61
545,000.00 136,250.01  408,749.99 25.00%



INCOME

EXPENSES

NON-CASH:

INDIAN HILLS GID

REVENUE AND EXPENSE

NOT INCLUDING DEPRECIATION
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

FEES

CONNECTION FEES
INTEREST
MISCELLANEOUS

TOTAL REV

SALARIES/BENEFITS
OPERATING EXP
DEBT PRINCIPAL
DEBT INTEREST
CAPITAL OUTLAY

TOTAL EXP

PROFIT {LOSS)

infrastructure depletion {DEPRECIATION)

SEWER
(OVER)/ 25.00%
BUDGET ACTUAL UNDER %
1,011,000.00 273,794.16  737,205.84  27.08%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
120.00 7,244.69 (7,124.69) 6037.24%
0.00 250.00 (250.00)  0.00%
1,011,120.00 281,288.85  729,831.15  27.82%
426,189.65  99,790.07  326,399.58  23.41%
221,425.00  66,351.81  155,073.19  29.97%
110,851.63 5,696.78  105,154.85 5.14%
43,437.33 6,81596 3662137  15.69%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
801,903.61 178,654.62  623,248.99  22.28%
209,216.39 102,634.23  106,582.16
383,000.00  95,750.01  287,249.99  25.00%



INCOME

EXPENSES

ADMIN

PARKS

STREETS

NON-CASH:

infrastructure depletion (DEPRECIATION)

INDIAN HILLS GID
REVENUE AND EXPENSE
NOT INCLUDING DEPRECIATION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

AD VALOREM

DOUGLAS CO. CONSOLIDATED TAX

PARK REV
GRANT
DONATIONS
MISCELLANEQUS
INTEREST
STORM WATER
TOTAL REV

SALARIES/BENEFITS
OPERATING EXP
CAPITAL OUTLAY
SALARIES/BENEFITS
OPERATING EXP
CAPITAL QUTLAY
SALARIES/BENEFITS
OPERATING EXP
CAPITAL OQUTLAY

TOTAL EXP

PROFIT

GENERAL

(OVER)/ 25.00%

BUDGET ACTUAL UNDER %
1,154,366.00 169,268.44 985,097.56  14.66%
404,710.00 103,555.49 301,154.51  25.59%
500.00 300.00 200.00  60.00%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
0.00 1,619.87  {1,619.87)  0.00%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
2,500.00  7,997.27  (5,497.27) 319.89%
21,700.00 548855  16,211.45  25.29%
1,583,776.00 288,229.62 1,295,546.38  18.20%
101,919.04  22,628.98  79,290.06  22.20%
223,950.00 36,784.22 187,165.78  16.43%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
220,534.96  39,558.77 180,976.19  17.94%
153,175.00  36,669.53 116,505.47  23.94%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
235,533.36  46,958.17 188,575.19  19.94%
95,425.00  16,045.13  79,379.87  16.81%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
1,030,537.36 198,644.80 831,892.56  19.28%

553,238.64 89,584.82  463,653.82

338,000.00  84,500.01 253,499.99  25.00%



—

€20c¢/0¢/6

AUVININNS ANNd ¥3LVM

aio STIIH NVIANI

95'82¢'¢€Z ¢  (SSOT)IWOODNI | 66°9vL'2ZL1L $ SNYO1 L0l |#6°265'25$ 37aVIIVAV V101
00°0%
GG’ N.vm_w—é uononisuUod S0} 9AIDSSY
9.°186'0ZL¢  juswaoeldas jeyded g6 gy 10} dABSY
0Z'SSE'vEES S19SSE PaAl] OYS J0} SAIS9Y
29'1¥6'29% WO 10} dAI8S9Y
19'86L'6¥C $ SIASN3IX3 IVLIOL 00'v¥82'0¥$ (pepuny A|Iny) 821AI8S Jqap 10} BAISSAY
- $ Aepno |eyde) ££°0L8'6.59 suladig
gzsre'gl % dx3 1sal8)u|
FAA:TAN YA - dx3 Bunesadp
G6P89'C0L $  sSweusg/ssuees
£9°092'€Z$- alqejieAy joyJep Asuopw
ce'e rm.mome SUONO3UUCY J0) BAIDSDY
mm.me,ov—é 2injonliselju| JOj aAiesay
£2°266'28% $ 3INNIAIY TVLIOL 8G°285'ZEVS 1oxue Asuop
00062 $ BWodu| ISIN
09€0C $ UOZLIdA
LT6EL'LLS 1sas8ul | G9G06'ELS  $ a1|)g Buyadid
00°0% $99) UONOBUUOD | ¥9L62'8EL  § vasneuwpdd  |21°858°92% ajqepeay bunesado
00'885°c$ sogioe | 00052'P6E ¢ (%GE) ZL0Z-Puog Jajlepm  [S8'990°0E$ NUe} JBJEM J0) POAIBSEY
EPocy'I€ § soa4aley aseg | 0/'€€L'l8T ¢ £00Z-puog Jo1epy  [08°968°0LE" LS 9SB8JOUI 9]B) WOJ) panIasay
€66y L2C $ $934 Jasn 28942 LLF'LS Bunesedo
S3ISNIdX3 / SANNIAIN SIONYIVE NYO1 SIONVIVE HSYD

A0



L0°iee’80L $  (SSOT) IWOONI 0z'08L'08%°) ¢ SNVO1IVIOL [15°28£°01L8% IV TIIVAY V101
ZL00LL¥LS 3|qe|leAy Jax3sey Asuop
¥8'/56'2LL  $ SASNIAIX3I TVLIOL
- $ Aepng jenden
96°C _.w_o w n_xm_ 1sal3ju| m#.m?o_ \.vw S}osse pPaAl| HoYs Jamas 10} 3AI8S3Y
L8°LGE'99 ¢ dx3 Bunelado 08'866°'/5% B0IAIDS 1qOP JOMBS J0) SAISSY
2006.'66 ¢ sjysuag/saireles ££'£66'882% SUONIAUUOY) IO} BAISSDY
/8 FNv.v rmw alnjonsselju| 10 aresay
LTE95'6v.LS 1sel Asuop
$8882°182% INNIATY V10l
00°052% awodul asiy 6.'98Z2'529% a|qe|ieAy Bunesado
69vrZ'1$ Jsassiu|
00°0% §89 UOIOBUUOD 0Z'0ev'6LL'L $ puoq Jamss yasn
66'/85'cS S99 8je 00'052'09¢ ¢ (%S9) ZiL0Z-puog 1omes  |+9'695'662'L$ SSBaJOU| 3JB) LI0Y PaAISSSY
£1°902'04/2% $994 JosN - $ 6661-pucg Jomes  |et'958'v/6'1$ Bunesedp
S3ASNIX3 / SANNIATY S3IONVIVE NVO1 SIONVIVE HSYD

£€202/0¢€/6
AYVININNS AONNd ¥3M3s
aio S1IH NVIANI

Al



FAVIIVAV TV10Ll

a|qepeay joxie Lauop

1PW J21EM LLIO)S J0) 2AIDSDY
ainjonJiselju] Jo} 2Alasay

19BN ASUON

a|qeeay bunesadQ
SUOIIBUO JO) paAIasay
S]22.418 J0) paAIasay

Bunesado

Z8'v85'68% ($S01) IWOODNI 9L'¥SS LS
08'¥v9°861L$ S3ISNI4X3 WLOL 89'40°0S1LS
00'0$ fepno lepded
88'867'68% dx3 Bunesedo
Z6'sPL'601% sjysuag/salees

68'67L'CYS

60°6€£1'682$
Z9°622°88Z% INNIAIY V101 99'626'85V$
18°619'L$ snoaue||2osiiy
00°0% PaAIad3al punj juelc)
17°166'L3 BWODU| 3S80M| 80°0L5'209%
00°00€$ S994 uones109y L1'169'C$
¥'89Z2'691$ Xe] WaIoeA PY rvLe'elZ'Ls
61'GGS'E0LS Xe| paieplosuon
§5'88%'6% $93) JOJEM UWLIO)S [9°615'988'L$

NINQY
SISNIdX3 / SANNIAIY
£202/0¢/6
(WINOTVA av)

AUVINNS S13TULS ‘SHAVd ‘NINav
aio S17IH NYIANI

SAVNYIVE HSYD

A



60'GE1'G82
20'SE2'VLZ
oo'see'eee
00°062'€sZ
00°065'612
00'059'661
00'0sP'eLlL
00°'0S€'2rL
00'885°cCl
C0'969'EH
00'266'¥9
00'88%'L€
00'006'8L

000

e'Izr'pie
96'9¥5'20T
00'2€€'48l
00'ZE¥'G9L
00°LE6'Erl
00 £89'€Zi
00°289'€01
00'/89'68
00°'169'69
00'9¥S'¥L
00'v56'65
coO'vLE'ar
00°0LE'LE

00°005'22

sanppusdxs paaosdde 105 Way) asn om SB SSEAINAP SALIJBLLOS |[IM SJUNOLIE aAIas)Y

96956621
68'220'692°)
00°6EP'88L°L
00'0£0'€20°L
00'5v2'66.
00'501°685
00°£86'98¢€
00'€985'12e
00°Z51'66
00'v9g'L2
000

000

000

000

S3AHISIY U430
NiNav

SAAYES3Y Hd3A  S3AYIS3Y LY
HILVYMILSYM

¥20¢-1 102 WOYA

88'628'0pL 03'958'0LE"L £2/0¢/6 Jo se
6£'995'881 6EV66'TET'L £202/0e/9
00'0£°901 00'89¥'9LL'L €c0z/0e/9
00'028'v91 00°4+2'1Z6 LZ202/0E/9
00'128'EEL 00v8r'ee9 0202/0£/9
00°020'ZLL 00'998'9b. 610¢/08/9
00'829'¥6 00'2s0'car 8102/0¢/9
00'829'eL 00'¥69°£92 L102/0E/9
00021702 00'9€€'ZE} 9lL0g/oE/e
00'vLL'8Y 00°2£9°8€ §10¢/0€/9
00°005'S. 000 ¥102/0E/9
00’961 'G5 ey £102/0E/9
00°00.'0¥ 000 Z1og/oem
00'005°22 000 L 1L0Z/0E/9
S3IAHISIY 4d30  SIAYISIY Ilvd| 3Lva

HILVM

HVIA TVOSId AG SIAUISTIY HSVOD

ai© ST7IH NVIANI

9
Ye)



AGENDA ITEM 5c.

Reports to the Board:

c. Engineer Report



AGENDA ITEM 5d.

Reports to the Board:

d. Attorney Report

5



AGENDA ITEM 6.

Discussion and possible action to award a bid to
Spanish Springs Construction in the amount of
$1,848,905.00 with an additional $50,000.00 force
account for the Indian Drive Reconstruction &
Utility Replacement Project.

(District Engineer, Collin/ District General
Manager, Chris Johnson) -

Al



[

LUMOS

CARSON CITY OFFICE
308 N. Curry Street, Suite 200
Carson City, NV 89703

Ph: 775/883-7077
Fax: 775/883-7114

Memorandum

DATE: 10/11/22

TO: Chris Johnson ~ IHGID General Manager

FROM: Collin Sturge - IHGID District Engineer

PROJECT: 10500.001

SUBJECT: Indian Drive Reconstruction & Utility Replacement Project - Construction Award

Volume 1 of the project includes the installation of approximately 1,500 linear feet new waterline, CIPP
lining of approximately 1,600 linear feet of sewer mains and lateral reconnections, water service
connections, new meter boxes and fire hydrants. Surface improvements include full road re-pavement and
road striping in Indian Drive and Gregory Court, sidewalk and curb & gutter spot repair, and ADA
improvements. Volume 2 of the project includes removing and demolishing existing drainage structures
and storm drain pipe; installing a new Type 4R catch basin, a new storm drain manhole, new drain piping;
regrading an existing pond; installing a concrete wash pad, 6-inch trench drain, and a sand separator at the
IHGID Yard.

Five bids for the project were received and publicly opened on October 10, 2023 at 2:30pm in the Lumos
& Associates Carson City Office. All bids received were within the range of approximately $1,840,000 to
$2,450,000, with the Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Construction Cost (OPCC) being approximately
$2,100,000. The apparent low bidder is Spanish Springs Construction at a bid price of $1,848,905.

Lumos has compiled the Contractor’s bids, along with the original OPCC on the attached Bid Tabulation
for reference.

Spanish Springs Construction has submitted a responsive and responsible bid for the project; therefore,
Lumos & Associates recommends that Spanish Springs Construction be awarded the full Contract in the
amount of $1,848,905. Lumos also recommends The Board authorize a $50,000 Force Account be added
to the Contract, to be used for unforeseen changes in construction (the Contractor must receive
approval from Chris Johnson, District Manager, prior to utilizing the Force Account).

Sincerely,

e =z, —

Collin Sturge, P.E.
IHGID District Engineer

Board Memo Award

M



o

00'SL6'S2ETS 00°£00°086°T$ 00'SSH'I9R'TS OT'PSVLER'TS 00'FLY'E6D°TS D0'0SS'MOE'TS 101 WORONGEUOOTH BALN USTPU] - T BUNHOA
DUsLIUTE [ooscres 0000TTTH [
oo'scc'szé “peseris oo s2a'9t forsezs 0005 Jpoons: e fusa wualsuuos) uopmneres oo
SRODISIRRY
COELLTINF 0000T06TF CLae ] [Ty e ey
TV PO000ETS O00ELS 1$ | 00 0w sconary 9 kensn uopuedy|  ft
05971 a3 g '000°1T$ ‘005 ch )| NoUisTy Yy sy g
0S50S 056'STE oo°000"ve$ "000'9LS 000'09% w3 SapqSNTY JEIpAH B
ofe'eet LETS oo 00E'15% 00L'SH 005 6% | MRARIDEAN] OO
%3 8 poDOE'S$ '00E'SE 005 ¥ n MA D G A
06T'0L$ 00006'26% 006'% "006"95% vi UORIRUOD EXANS T P JIBYY EM BNG yicman m
08T'6TE 0R'rS 00"000°15$ 0059% 000'vet L] UORIIIOY ST /G 3 MO NIE ougs p/e mbwi| o1
'00L° LT 004’218 000°0tE {1t '005°ZTE ] Apaessy dug 100 9|
005" c2¥ '005'22 '000°0¢ {23 '000°ST$ % Aty 0RL YoM 71 5t
p0°000°E66$ THE '000'SLES 00s°zeTd oosT | N ssoususpinddy '§ SUgmmM 006D A4 Prumnsey 8 T
] | SERARIIT SRy SV,
00 ST ILES _S.upn_ll.ﬂ 00'00L 534 0L GG Bes enyeg |
SUE 100°ShZS a 0OSET$ 00002 00CE 00°007$ "t uoHEEEISY Jeu) M U pAST) 71| £
X 0650618 100r0LL'S §..h«-m 00008 irs 0000565 1§ 005 'sH 6 vi Jouf] 3y doL jm voeUUCORY JLEE AR vl 2T
[ ]
R SRR CORD
] ] sy vty
'SLVTSE -,83 oYz | 5 vy g mDnoAamsl 0
'MTIES 6% o L) Heindy B G
.._ﬂ.a ooz’ | a9 ARMIPE
DU S6TTI$ SST$ Sdﬂxn_u F005'1$ 6 v FUmUEHIOpg AaANS ERKley
i fgead r...ﬁo OSL'sH T | B,
po-oos'sees 4 ooc'es | 15 g U0 IV S I
| ORI S00LNE
00°0ET Su« DOLTCSETE 00°00L L6TH ovBLT YIS 00 00T TOTH 1o [y
T FOOFOLE jooo0v 2§ RS 00"000°5%% "000'95% 000 20F 000TES Tupoiog
00000+ 000k pooatels 001°p1S o-w00'zzs '000'2TH '000°ETH '000'sTH fpauoD na f didms|
ko crens it pooozioes oOTct$ oo'000'1 28 '000'1 26 Y DOT'SERS 00T'SETE RN L
.80» 0000" 001 00°001$ 00"00E 94 ' 00E"Sws 01'5L1°5918 16L1°591% 0000 IS "000°L1$ USETAURG Pl UOYMT OB
[ ]
" o), w 4 JN ousmer | sopain =pamey | v wpames | wuaamn opa 0L _ M 00 ©ug oL soudaen  flwerd swn] wonyaea o want prg
UORONGSUCD EPEARN EAINS 0D UORIED “M'd UL LORPROEU0D aTE - =) aqeIps] 8, owbug
NOLLYMULSNODTY JATHG NYIGNI - .n ntag
MDS.S 7




A

00 Z30'ELPES 00 ZDD'GFT ZH 00 £9T620°CH OT 6FOOP6 1S 00°'S06'8VE 15 00°SZES60'CE S|E301 pUeID Pofold
WPEGRH UCRIALEUD) EpEAS RLSS 07 vonre) Md "] UORIANELOD ldvY uoRILSOD SBuLs ysiuNds aquunsg s eoubuz :
_Sd.:.nﬁ» i [oosaziasts _S.maﬂ.nleunu [ooTevEsTE [ooszemers [ W01 pid EEMm € 1 BHA-T
00005 $|oorsz $ | 00'00b'T $ | oorazt 4 | 00°08s't & | 00'56 3 | 00o0s'y ${00sm 1 007008z $ | ooroEL $ | 00'005'T $ | o0se + < El el DA OF PS5 113
10°005°71 | oorons'zt | oozl ${oosto'et ] 00°000'1z $ | voovorTE $ | orooa'st $ | o0000°'¥1 + | 05666’z $ | 0ses'or $ | soo00'0z $ | 00'000°02 LA soemdas pues Jasul( o1
00°008"r $ | o0'o0l $ | D0"OMEY $ | oorosT $ | 00'910"%1 § | o0Z6T $ | oo'oog’y $ | 00'001 $ [ oo'oov'e $ | oorsst $ | 2000y $ | poroor + " Ful e el L9 L1
Lo § | 00'696 $ | D000STS $ [ 00r0sv1 $ | 00onr'ey + [ 00sHET $ | 00-00T'sz $ | o0'00L § | ob-oow'zE $ | 00005 + | 0000 'ZE $ | o0ro06 $| st A Bunspcy O] IPRID PUE PR YSEM SILDUCT SPRIL ZT ST L]
90WE'E $ | 00zsn $ | carso1’st $ | 00rssT § | 00wtz 4 | 00°Z8E $ [ 00'095'y $ | o008 $ | O0°592°08 $ 1004w | BOSLT Y $|o0ss H &5 Ll P PUR (310 19N) AN NG PUE 3dy) JNT I Py BUnsi apeig-ay 3
S0EIFOT $ | oost1 £ | bo'seo’s? $ | obrset $ | potwreT $ | 0011 $ | o0'o9s'0T $ | o001 $[os1ns'ne $ | osszr + | 00r0865T $ | oo'ost $| el ELl did upa] 3aOH PREALED ST S]] L]
00°08C°2 $ | 0008e's & | soro0Te $ | 00'o0z’L $ | 00r00n'zH $ {00001’z $ | 00°000'8 £ | 90°000°9 $ | 00008’ € | 00'008's $ | ooro0o'ot $ | o0'co0’ot 3 1 v3 4 T e S & 5
HOUITG 5T 03 B “STU IPSID IR B /M HOYURK 3OS 4T TSV
007056°E $ | 00'066°E + | 00006'E $ | 00°D05'E $ | 0000y $ | otroor'y $ | 00005's + | 00°005°S $ | 00'00s'S $ | 0000S'S $ | oproos'zr $ | 00005'T1 $ 1 v uiSEg LPORD W AdAL s L]
00SAL'E $|00R +{ 00'se9'pt % | 0068 $ | D0'sSHe $[o0ex $ | oosee’s + | 00'SE $ |oo'sse’s § | oozw $ | 00'006'6 § {0009 $| 91 a1 Ui LS g T Sussncg i ouwsg pus anusny| E
. . —n . g " " TR L " . U] S0
00°S61°T $ | 0D'SET'T % | 0070051 $ | 00:009°1 $ | 00'00K'T $ | 00'00¥'T $ | oo'00s'z $ | 000052 $ | 00-005"y $ | 00Uy $ | ooro0s'T $ 1 00005'C $ 1 a1 HewapIS Burspe pue smaanas abeuisag BUnSIG YRRWEG PUE MO z
D005 9 $ | 000583 # | oo'ooo’st $ | 00'000°S1 & | 207005 1 $ | 00r00s'FL $ | 00000’z $ | 00000’ $ [ 00°000's $ | 00'D00'S $ | o0'000's $ | 00000°s $ 1 L1 USOEDIKIOUR PUl UINEZHG0W| T
s
woud oL 34 3un = ®onaINn g moL wopd aun oopd im0 g un oopa 101 oy oy g oL woud W b e o usT; Pl
QV¥d HSYM B SLNIWIAOUSIWI QUVA - Z AWMIOA




AGENDA ITEM 7.

Discussion and possible action to adopt a new
park use fee schedule. (Trustee, Garcia)

30



INDIAN HILLS GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
PARK USE FEE SCHEDULE

The fee schedule below applies to uses or activities, which require the approval of a Special Use
Permit. Activities not requiring a Special Use Permit are not subject to fees.

FEES DEPOSIT
CEPP00000000000000004000000000000000000000000000000000000

Two hours minimum on all facility rentals.

Park Reservation Fees =

James Lee Park Gazebo (1-50) $25/Hour $100
(51-100) $35/Hour $100

North Sunridge Park (1-25) $25/Hour $100
(26-50) $35/Hour $100

South Sunridge Park (1-25) $25/Hour $100
(26-50) $35/Hour $100

Tournament Fees/ Ball Field Use
(1-6 Hrs) $30 / Field $100
(Al Day) $60 / Field $200

(2 days or more} $300 $300

Field Use Fees

Individual Use ~ Field * $3/ Hour

Individual Use ~ Lights $20/ Hour

Concession Stand

James Lee Park Concession Stand 1-4 Hrs $25/Hr 5+ Hrs $125/day $200

Alcohol Sales Fee $50 / Event (Non-Refundable)

Court Reservations

Tennis Court Individual Use*/ ** $2.50/Hour

Tourmnaments $30/Court/Day $100
Skateboard Park (Event Use) $25/Hour $100
Restroom Key Checkout $300

Deposit is to cover the cost to rekey the restrooms in the event of the key being lost.

“Ne-feeswill be-charged-forresident applicants,
**Only one reservation at a time is permitted. Once that reservation has been used, rescheduled,
or passed then you may make another reservation.

District staff time required for set-up, attendance, and/or clean up will be billed to the Special Use
Permit holder.

Adopted October 21, 2003
Amended October 18, 2023, Efective November 1, 2023

17 Special Use Permit & Fee Schedule 3 {
IHGID is an equal opportunity provider



AGENDA ITEM 8.

Discussion and possible action to adopt a
structured form for General Manager mid-year and
annual evaluation which may include goals and
objectives for the next review cycle.

(Trustee, Garcia)



GENERAL
IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICT

General Manager Annual Performance Evaluation

Summary

The General Manager's performance evaluation consists of an annual appraisal
by the Board of Trustees, as provided per the Sun Valley GID's Personnel
Manual.

The purpose of the evaluation process is to maintain a strong Board/Manager
team by ensuring open and productive communication on an annual basis.
During this formal review process, there is an opportunity to identify areas of
satisfaction and items needing change or improvement as identified by the
Board.

The evaluation and review discussion is scheduled for June 08, 2023, during the
regularly scheduled Board of Trustees meeting.

Attached please find your evaluation form, employee evaluation guidelines,
evaluation process, my report on performance, accomplishments, goals. Please
rate the General Manager in the areas provided. You may also provide narrative
comments, and/or additional information to be considered.

33



PERFORMANCE EVALUATION: GENERAL MANAGER Probation
S
Semi-annual

EMPLOYEE []  Anncal
DATE: (Adopted May 2013)
1. QUALITY & QUANTITY OF WORK: Rating:
At Expectations: Meets expectations for quantity and quality of work; completes daily and monthly quantity 5
of work as required; consistently accurate and thorough; necessary follow through is completed in a
timely manner; regularly reports work progress and problems; accepts responsibility for successes and 4
failures; proposes ideas for different goals, methods, or techniques of operation to improve work 3
outcomes with limited risks and greater potential benefits. 2
Cite Examples: 1
2. INTERACTIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS: Rating:
At Expectations: Interacts professionally and courteously with the public, supervisors, coworkers, 5
customers, and others. Readily shares infermation and provides assistance; verbally communicates
information in an understandable manner; written communications are consistently clear and accurate; 4
demonstrates understanding of instructions; demonstrates tolerance in working with coworkers and 3
others, and with changes in job conditions; encourages and is receptive to new ideas and procedures. 2

1
Cite Examples:

34



3. PLANNING AND ORGANIZATION:

Rating:

At Expectations: Uses time effectively; completes assignments on time; discerns priority assignments;
identifies and selects appropriate alternatives; demonstrates problem-solving abilities for levels or
work/assignments; completes assignments and follows through; understands relationships between
his/her position and other jobs, departments, agencies, and public; uses resources effectively; identifies
and takes action to reduce the need for duplicate actions and for future resources.

Cite Examples:

= N W b

4. DECISION MAKING AND PROBLEM SOLVING:

Rating:

At Expectations: Uses good and a common-sense approach to situations, particularly during stressful
situations; requires minimal supervision; determines appropriate course of action and takes same; does
not allow situations to further deteriorate; recognizes when to ask for assistance; anticipates situations
and prepares for them; applies safe working practices in daily job duties is capable of changing way of
thinking and performing in conjunction with the needs of the department and community; recognizes
when circumstances dictate a change is necessary.

Cite Examples:

- N W A

5. PERSONAL BEHAVIOR:

Rating:

At Expectations: Behavior is a positive example for other staff; is present at work and meetings in a
consistent and timely manner; dress, grooming and language is appropriate to position; is fair and
impartial in dealing with others; responds appropriately to adverse and stressful situations; shows good
judgment in a variety of circumstances; effectively adjusts to changing priorities and circumstances;
demonstrates tolerance with work associates and job conditions; interactions with others are of the
highest level of integrity and ethical conduct; demonstrates respect for others and their ideas.

Cite Examples:

- N W

35



6. ATTENDANCE AND PUNCTUALITY: Rating:
At Expectations: Arrives promptly and is ready to work at beginning of shift; takes appropriate meal times 5
and breaks within the time limits established; sets a positive example for others; absents by the General 4
Manager is for acceptable reasons. 3

2

1
Cite Examples:
7. EDUCATION AND JOB KNOWLEDGE: Rating:
At Expectations: Shows imitative through continuing education including workshops, conferences and on 5
the job training; demonstrates pride in enhancing expertise in all aspects of job duties; recognizes need 4
for and takes action to update skills and knowledge pertinent to profession. 3

2

1
Cite Examples:
8. LEADERSHIP: Rating:
At Expectations: Demonstrates effective direction and control of employees. Motivates employees to 5
meet and/or exceed the expectation performance for their positions. Encourages imitative and delegates 4
appropriately. Communicates effectively with employees through verbal, non-verbal, and written skills. |s 3
available to employees for counseling and guidance. 2

1
Cite Examples:

3l



9. EVALUATION & OBJECTIVITY:

Rating:

At Expectations: Timely preparation and administration of meaningful, accurate and fair performance
evaluations. Suggests opportunities to enhance performance for employees who are "At Expectations or
Iabove. Sets standards of improvement & consequences for employees who are "Below Expectation”,

[Cite Examples:

- N W oA

10. GOVERNING BOARD RELATIONSHIPS:

Rating:

At Expectations: Effectively implements policies and programs approved by the governing Board; carries
out directives of the governing Board as a whole, rather than those of any one member of the Board;
reporting to the governing Board is timely, clear, concise, thorough, and disseminated equally; accepts
directionfinstructions in a positive manner; keeps the governing Board informed of current plans and
activities of the Sun Valley GID and new developments in technology, legislation, governmental, practices
and regulations, etc.; provides the governing Board with clear report of anticipated issues that could come
before the governing Board.

Cite Examples:

- N W A

11. FISCAL MANAGEMENT:

Rating:

At Expectations: Prepares realistic balanced annual budget; controls expenditures in accordance with
approved budget; provides accurate reports/information in a timely manner; makes the best possible use
of available funds, conscious of the need to operate the local government efficiently and effectively; the
preparedirecommended budget is in an intelligent and accessible format; possesses awareness of the
importance of financial planning and accounting controls.

Cite Examples:

- N W A

3Y



Overall

SUMMARY AND OVERALL EVALUATION Rating:

)

4

3
Total points ! 11 * = Overall Rating *{number 2
of categories rated) 1

SUGGESTIONS FOR IMPROVEMENT:

EMPLOYEE COMMENTS:

Additional pages may be attached.

EVALUATED BY:

EMPLOYEE:

DATE:

DATE:

Employee signature acknowledges recelpt of review and does not necessarily indicate agreement.

3%



EMPLOYEE EVALUATION GUIDELINES

Rate an employee's competency in each of the seven areas of his/her job performance and in accomplishment of

each work goal by circling the number that summarizes your evaluation of the employee for this item. Assess

each competency and performance of each work goal independently.

Use definitions below to determine the most appropriate rating. Cite examples describing competency displayed
or goals attained/missed for each area rated. A detailed explanation of the basis for a rating of 1 or 5 is required.

Employee's performance during rating period demonstrates possession of
substantial knowledge and ability. Performance clearly and consistently
exceeds the performance expectations for this position and the employee's
performance serves as a role model for other employees. No training or
assistance is needed in this area. Itis unlikely that any employee in this
position could perform better. This level demonstrates exemplary
performance.

SIGNIFICANTLY
ABOVE
EXPECTATIONS
5

Employee's performance demonstrates knowledge and ability that is
stronger than expected. Performance consistently meets expectations and
is frequently above expectations. The employee does not need assistance
in performing work, rarely makes mistakes, and works with minimum
supervision,

ABOVE
EXPECTATIONS

Employee demonstrates sufficient breadth of knowledge and/or ability in
their work to meet job expectations. Areas of weakness are balanced by
areas of strength. Failures in meeting expectations and errors in
performance do not interfere with the overall productivity of the work unit.
The employee typically meets expectations and generally corrects errors
with limited instruction or assistance.

MEETS

EXPECTATIONS

Some aspects of the employee’s performance are acceptable; however,
significant weakness in performance occurs. Failures in meeting
expectations and errors in performance that interfere with the overall
productivity of the work unit occur often. Deficiencies may be corrected
through a combination of increased efforts on the part of the employee,
remedial training, and/or increased supervisicn. Close monitoring of
performance is necessary. Improvement is required if the employee is to
remain employed in the current position or is serving a probationary period
and is required to meet the "Meet EXPECTATIONS" expectations of the
position.

BELOW

EXPECTATIONS

Performance is so poor the employee's continued employment is in
immediate jeopardy. The employee frequently fails to meet job
expectations. Failures are so consistent and serious that they frequently
interfere with the ability of the work unit to complete its work or provide its
service. Employee does not apply a level of knowledge and/or ability
sufficient to allow continued employment. A score of "Significantly Below
EXPECTATIONS" on any competency indicates the employee's
performance must improve significantly within a limited period of time. Itis
often accompanied by disciplinary action.

SIGNIFICANTLY

BELOW

EXPECTATIONS

3



Sun Valley GID Evaluation Process Adopted December 2005
Revised June 2010

I. EVALUATION PROCESS

A. EVALUATION FORM (copy attached):

1. MANAGEMENT EVALUATIONS: The SVGID Board completes
evaluations and review with the management staff semi-
annually using the schedule in 2{a & b):

2. NON-MANAGEMENT EVALUATIONS: Managers/Supervisors
are to complete evaluations with input from other management
staff and review with the employee semi-annually using the
following schedule:

a) Mid-Point (December):

(1) This mid-point evaluation gives the employee guidance
on how they are doing and an opportunity to improve any
areas of concern. (Sample form attached).

b) Annual (June):

(1) This annual evaluation rates the employee’s
performance for the entire past year and will be used to
determine possible raises or corrective measures necessary.
(Sample form is attached).



Sun Valley GID Evaluation Process Adopted December 2005
Revised June 2010

B. Evaluation scores:

1. During June of each year, the SVGID Board will determine
the “At Expectations” percentage calculations on which raises
are to be based. Evaluation scores as set by the
Manager/Supervisor will determine the individual employees
raise based on the following criteria.

Score Rating Raise%

1-1.9 Significantly Below Expectations 0%

2-2.9 Below Expectations 0%
3-3.9 At Expectations % set by Board
4-4.9 Above Expectations 1.25% times the at

Expectations %

5 Significantly Above Expectations 1.50% times the at
Expectations %

*These percentages are minimums. During years the Board is unable to give
any raises they will consider alternate incentives for employees who are
Above Expectations or Significantly Above Expectations.

C. BELOW EXPECTATIONS EVALUATIONS:
1. Below Expectations

a) Employee is placed on a 3 month probationary period.
The employee must bring performance up to the “At
Expectations” rating on this 3 month evaluation or the
termination process will be implemented.



Sun Valley GID Evaluation Process Adopted December 2005
Revised June 2010

2. Significantly Below Expectations

a) Employee is placed on a 1 month probationary period.
The employee must show significant improvement and
bring their performance up to at least a “Below
Expectations” rating by the end of the month period or the
termination process will be implemented.

b) . If they meet this first benchmark they will be evaluated
at the end of the next 2 months, by which time their
performance must be brought up to the “At Expectations”
rating or the termination process will be implemented.

D. APPEALS:

1. Employees have the right of appeal to the SVGID Board if
they feel they have been unfairly evaluated in their Anniversary
Date evaluation. It is the employee’s responsibility to request a
closed personnel session to discuss their grievance.
Employees have 15 days from their evaluation date to request
an appeal.

E. DISCIPLINE PROCEDURES:

1. See Personnel Manual, Section 8.2 for additional disciplinary
measures that may be taken at any time.



Employee Name:

KGID General Manager Performance Evaluation

Date:

Rating Period: From: To: Current

Rating Scale Definitions {1-3)

1. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION AND ACHIEVEMENTS

1. | Board of Trustees Relationships 1 2 3 N/A
A. | Effectively implements policies and programs approved by
the Board of Trustees.
B. | Reporting to the Governing Board is timely, clear,
concise and thorough.
C. | Accepts direction/instructions in a positive manner.
D. | Keeps the Board of Trustees informed of current plans
and activities of the KGID Manager's office and new
developments in technology, legislation, governmental
practices and regulations, etc.
E. | Provides the Board of Trustees with clear report of
anticipated issues that could come before the Trustees.
Comments:
2. | RPublic Community Relations 1 2 3 N/A
A. | Projects a positive public image.
B. | Is always courteous to the public.
C. | Maintains effective relations with media representatives.
D | Implements community outreach programs
F | Ensures community facing messages and programs
convey positive and profession image of district
Comments: _
3. | Effective Leadership of-Stalf 1 2 3 N/A
A. | Delegates appropriately responsibilities:
B. | Develops people with timely trainings and

communications.

employees and external service providers.

C. | Maintains an effective and cooperative relationship with
D

Establishes a culture of public service by example

Comments

43



Fiscal Management

N/A

Prepares realistic annual budget.

Controls expenditures in accordance with approved
budget.

Cultivates culture of fiscal accountability and ensuring
accurate report/information in timely manner.

ﬁ.o o ofzls

Provides accurate reports/information in a timely manner.

Comments

Communication

N/A

Oral communication is clear, concise, and articulate.,

Written communications are clear, concise, and accurate.

O|w > o

Listens effectively and responds appropriately.

Comments:

Professional Job-Related Competencies

N/A

Decision Making: Reasons, analyzes, and evaluates;
looks beyond short-term resulls; properly assesses; and
knows when to ask for assistance. Uses good judgment
and common-sense approach; anticipates situations;
capable of embracing change and recognizes when
circumstances dictate a change is necessary.

Personal Behavior: Behavior is positive example for
others; consistent and timely at work and meetings; dress
and grooming is appropriate to position; shows good
judgment; interactions with others are of the highest level
of integrity and ethical conduct; is fair and impartial in
dealing with others; and sets strong personal example by
demonstrating respect for others and their ideas.

Leadership: Ability to get others to work together
effectively and see “big picture”; takes ownership for own
activities; interacts with others objectively; acts decisively
and utilizes resources effectively.

Technical Knowledge: Maintains current technical
knowledge and ability to sufficiently manage and complete
tasks/projects; actively pursues expanded mastery of

knowledge and abilities in responsibilities of position; and

Comments

W



Intergovernmental Affairs 1 2 3 N/A
Maintains effective communication with local, regional,
state, and federal government agencies.

Pursues grants or leverages resources (grants) with other
agencies.

Contributions to good government through regular
participation in local, regional, and state committees, and
business-related organizations.

D. | Lobbies effectively with legislators and state agencies
regarding programs and projects affecting the duties of the
Manager.

O] W =N

Comments:

Il.  ACHIEVEMENTS RELATIVE TO OBJECTIVES FOR THIS EVALUATION PERIOD:

lll. SUMMARY RATING

Overall Performance Rating — Considering the resulis obtained against established performance standards as
well as overall job performance, the following rating is provided:

Improvement Meets Job Exceeds Job
Needed Standards Standards
1 2 3

Comments:

IV. FUTURE GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

Specific goals and objectives to be achieved in the next evaluation period:
L




GOVERNING BOARD

Board of Trustees Chairperson Date
V. KGID MANAGER COMMENTS & SIGNATURE
Manager Signature Date

4o



AGENDA ITEM 9.

Discussion only on sharing excess speed data
with the appropriate authorities.
(Trustee, Garcia)

47



AGENDA ITEM 10.

Discussion only and update on James Lee Dog
Park improvements.
(General Manager, Chris Johnson)

g



AGENDA ITEM 11.

Discussion and possible action to approve Draft
Minutes from the September 20, 2023, Board
Meeting.

49



Minutes
Indian Hills General Improvement District
Board of Trustees Meeting
District Office
3394 James Lee Park Rd. #A
Carson City, NV 89705
September 20, 2023
Regular Board Meeting 6:00 P.M.

Trustees Present: Chairman Dunham, Vice Chairman Stulac, Secretary/Treasurer Lufrano, Trustee
Garcia, and Trustee Siegman.

Trustees Absent: none.

Staff Present: General Manager Chris Johnson and Administrative Services Supervisor/Human
Resources Brooke Thompson.

Others Present: District Counsel Chuck Zumpft, District Engineer’s Tim Russell, and Collin
Sturge. Residents Lynn Dement, Kathy Waters, and Brian Patrick.

6:00P.M. - Regular Meeting

1. Call to Order
Request that Cell Phones and Pagers be turned off for recording purposes.
Chairman Dunham called the meeting to order at 6:01PM.

23 Pledge of Allegiance: Led by Trustee Garcia.

3. Public Interest Comment: Resident Lynn Dement stated last time we talked about waivers for
volunteers if that was something we could look into and if it is a possibility for the District. Is
it an option. District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated that the District can utilize volunteers at
its discretion we just make sure they have workers compensation coverage for them.

4, Approval of Agenda

Vice Chairman Stulac motioned to approve the agenda. Trustee Siegman seconded. Motion carried
unanimously.

S. Reports to the Board:

a. General Manager Report
General Manager Chris Johnson reviewed his report with the board.
1. Administrative
General Manager Chris Johnson reviewed the Administrative report
with the board.

Minutes of the September 20, 2023, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-1-

50



2. Water
General Manager Chris Johnson reviewed the Water report with the
board.
3. Wastewater
General Manager Chris Johnson reviewed the Wastewater report with
the board.
b. District Accountant Report
General Manager Chris Johnson reviewed the Accountant report with the
board.
C. Engineer Report
d. Attorney Report

Recess 6:45
Reconvene 6:50
Public comment:

6. Discussion and possible action to approve an addition of a grassy area to the James Lee
Dog Park.
General Manager Chris Johnson discussed this with the Board.

Resident Lynn Dement stated that she would like to vote on this with the caveat that grass
will be put in when the time comes.

The board briefly discussed this item.

Public comment: Resident Lynn Dement stated she thinks that we can all compromise instead of
making a horrible mess out of this. All she is asking is to please have an open mind. If we are
getting rid of grass in one area let’s put it in the dog park. We are only talking about a little corner
of grass with a tree. It needs to have a date; you can’t put grass in in January. She doesn’t want it to
get lost. Please put a date on it have an open mind since it will be a net zero cost to the district.

Resident Brain Patrick stated is there a motion by the board yet. Maybe he is wrong but normally
you would make a motion, have a second then have discussions on the item and then a vote.

No action was taken as there was not a motion made on this item.

7. Discussion and possible action regarding Sidewalk Obstruction and Maintenance
Policy. 2010P-02.
Trustee Garcia discussed his thoughts and explained this item with the board.

The board briefly discussed this item.

Public comment: Resident Brain Patrick you don’t have a motion number one, if you are reviewing
a policy and you want to make changes bring the changes before the board and bring it here, so it is
clearer and more apparent. You have nothing right now. He is just letting you know what he thinks
the board needs to do.

Minutes of the September 20, 2023, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
S0

S|



Resident Lynn Dement stated that she is so glad you put this on the agenda she mentioned
something about this before. She has a dear friend in a wheelchair that had to go out in the street to
pass some branches. Lynn stated that she gave a list of all of them to the office she turned them in
and letters hopefully they were sent. There are still the same houses out there that need to fix the
issue. She knows it is a process to get it done. She wishes volunteers could assist the GID in doing
this, they would be more than willing to do that.

No action was taken as there was not a motion made on this item.

8. Discussion and possible action regarding District programs and schedules for
maintenance of parks, streets, detention ponds, sewers, and other areas under the
purview of IHGID.

Trustee Garcia explained this item to the Board.

The board briefly discussed this item.

Public comment: Resident Brian Patrick stated once again there is no motion on the floor are you
directing Chris to make these schedules. There is no motion. Nothing is being done here for Chris or
for you. You hired him a year and a half ago on a job description, he thinks you picked the right guy
and he sat with a guy who did this for ten years. One of you has to write something down and make
a motion that you can decide on until you do. You haven’t done anything.

Resident Lynn Dement stated that this got way off-track. Mr. Garcia did not intend all of that to
happen. This is frustrating for the public here that you could not move on. The board is wishing for
a schedule for maintenance of the parks and everything. When you do have this put it in the
newsletter, have it in the office and on the website, it will cut down on the calls and questions from
the residents. Publicize the schedule so people know what is happening and when.

No action was taken as there was not a motion made on this item. Direction was given to the
General Manager to create a schedule of maintenance.

9. Discussion and possible action regarding the IHGID GM contract and Key
Performance Indicators the board shall or may consider at the time of the annual
review,

Trustee Garcia explained this item to the Board.

The board briefly discussed this item.

Public comment: none.
This item was tabled until the October 2023 Board Meeting.

10.  Discussion and possible action regarding the District’s reservation and fee structure.
Trustee Garcia explained this item to the Board.

The board briefly discussed this item.

Public comment: none.
Minutes of the September 20, 2023, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting

-3



No action was taken as there was not a motion made on this item. Direction was given to staff on
the changes requested and the fee schedule will be brought back to the board for approval.

11.  Discussion and possible action to approve Draft Minutes from the August 16, 2023,
Board Meeting.

Public comment: none.

Trustee Garcia motioned to approve Draft Minutes from the August 16, 2023, Board
Meeting. Secretary/Treasurer Lufrano seconded. Motion carried unanimously.

12. Chairman and Trustees Reports, Correspondence
Under this item the Board Members will briefly identify relevant communications
received by them before the meeting, or meetings attended, or potential business of the
district. No action will be taken on any of these items, but a member may request
such item or topic be placed on a future agenda.

Trustee Siegman stated he had a few people ask him about the street sweeper, specifically
the roads that are deteriorating the street sweeper is making it worse, maybe we should not
be sweeping as often as we are. He just wanted to bring it up.

General Manager Chris Johnson stated sure there are areas that we can consider cutting back
on the frequency of street sweeping.

Chairman Dunham stated he would like to bring to the board next month the issue of people
leaving debris in the streets for long periods of time.

Vice Chairman Stulac stated that he asked for an item regarding RV storage at the sewer
plant to be placed on the agenda. He spoke with Chris about it and changed his mind. Chirs
has good points as to why it wouldn’t work. Chris stated he would briefly update the board,
so Chris please tell everyone what we spoke about.

General Manager Chris Johnson stated the primary reason being that is tribal property. That
is a tribal road, and we cannot take commercial traffic across there. We cannot charge a fee,
as a public entity it would be questionable for us to compete with the tribal storage unit
there. The road Hobo Hot Springs is in bad condition, the tribe has already asked us to repair
that road which I said we will not because it is a county road, but they don’t maintain it. If
we start putting a lot of traffic down, there they would have an argument as to why we wont
repair it. The infrastructure cost to level out the plateaus to make it feasible for RV storage.
We would have to put in dg or something and the cost to install fencing. The liability to us is
another reason.

13. Adjournment

Trustee Garcia motioned to adjourn the meeting. Vice Chairman Lufrano seconded. Motion carried
unanimously.

Minutes of the September 20, 2023, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-4 -

53



Meeting adjourned at 8:58P.M.

FINAL APPROVED MINUTES AS PRESENTED

Secretary/Treasurer
Vicky Lufrano

Minutes of the September 20, 2023, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-5-

54



